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PART 1: INTRODUCTION
1.1 The Annual Report
This is the Annual Report of Gateway Airports Authority (SOC) Limited, which incorporates its financial performance, as contained in the audited Financial
Statements. The aim of the report is to record the performance of GAAL in achieving its pre-determined strategic objectives and the implementation of the
Forecast budget estimates as measured in the approved Annual Performance Plan and Budget.

1.2 Scope
The report covers the financial year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, with all substantial developments up to date of Board approval of the report. The focal
point of the report is Gateway Airports Authority Limited’s operations and all information financial and non-financial that greatly affect them.

1.3 Reporting frameworks
The financial statements have been provided in line with the Public Finance Management ACT of 1999 as amended as well as the Companies Act 0f 2008 as
amended. The Consolidated Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A
full set of the annual financial statements may be requested from the Chief Financial Officer.

1.4 Approval of the Board
The Board of Directors of GAAL confirm that the Annual Report addresses all material aspects of performance and all relevant issues of Gateway Airports
Authority Limited for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

_____________________________
Mr S Mahada

Mr NW Mathonsi

Chairperson: Board of Directors

Acting Chief Executive Officer
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PART 2: STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY
FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report are consistent with the Annual Financial Statements audited by the Auditor General.
The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines on Annual Reporting issued by National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements made with respect to this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurances as to
the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the Human Resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.
External Auditors were engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, and the human resources information and the financial affairs of this public
entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Mr NW Mathonsi
Acting Chief Executive Officer
01 August 2017
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PART 3: GENERAL
3.1 About GAAL

Gateway Airports Authority (SOC) Limited is a schedule 3D provincial state-owned enterprise. The mandate of GAAL is to manage all non-private airports
including Polokwane International Airport in compliance with various legislative and administrative acts, including the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) Act no 38
of 2009. GAAL receives a grant from the Department of Transport and Community Safety.
Polokwane International Airport
Polokwane International Airport (PIA) is the only international airport in the Province. The airport is located at an elevation of 1 242 m and has two surfaced
runways i.e.
•

Runway 01/19: Dimensions: 2 500 m x 45 m

•

Runway 05/23: Dimensions: 2 340 m x 45 m

The Airport also boasts of the following features:
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Polokwane International Airport (PIA) holds a category 7 international License



64 000 Passengers movements and 6600 aircraft movements occur in the 2016/17 Financial year



Four aprons with a parking capacity of 74,800square meters are available



The airport has 18 hangers

PART 4. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
4.1 Vision
To be an optimally functioning airports authority and centre of excellence for aviation services in the region.
4.2 Mission
To utilise our strategic location as a gateway, we will provide world class airport facilities that stimulate job creation, skills development, trade and tourism within
the region.

4.3 Values
 Passionate
Passionately living our values and pursuing our goals, shared vision and commitment to our vision and mission.


Responsive
Proactive response to demographic, social, developmental and environmental challenges and the opportunities and be socially responsive



Integrity
Enabling trust and respect in all our actions by doing the right actions all the time and being accountable



Dedication
Dedicated to good governance, compliance to legislation, adhering to aviation regulations and good corporate citizenship



Excellence
Continuously improving and innovating our business and delighting our stakeholders by providing unsurpassed service excellence.
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FOREWORD BY
THE MEMBER OF EXECUTIVE COUNCIL OF TRANSPORT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY
The Annual Report of GAAL for the 2016/2017 financial year is a reflection of numerous notable achievements as
well as progressive developments at GAAL including; the development of more stringent internal controls, better
financial management and an influx of skilled and talented human capital committed to the achievement of the
goals of the Entity. These positive developments signal an important turnaround from what GAAL experienced five
years ago. The Entity is now in a better position than before, to play a significant and meaningful role in the
economic growth of the province.
The key objective of GAAL is to establish a globally competitive integrated exports platform, to serve aviation linked
sectors and to act as a facilitator for sustainable job creation and private sector investment over the next 30 years.
GAAL should unlock the latent and potential inherent of Limpopo province’s key economic and development
objectives by re-positioning our economy in the global supply chain. In this process, our assets and resources must
serve to stimulate private sector investments and sustainable job creation in tourism and high value low weight
manufacturing, trade and logistics sectors of our economy.

This will be achieved through detailed planning and implementation of investment in destination marketing, tour
operator packages, charter packages and industrial development to support manufacturing sectors’ global competitiveness and access to regional and international
markets. These targeted interventions and investment must be both on the aeronautical and non-aeronautical infrastructure and services.

GAAL is committed to address the challenges to increase the frequency of flights as well as utilizing bigger aircraft to unlock the latent demand in Limpopo and build
a culture of flying to complement the prevailing road travel preferences. GAAL remains committed to the corporate social investment and responsibility and commits
to live up to its corporate citizenship. This is with the prime objective of accelerating change in order to improve aviation in Limpopo.

__________________________________
HONOURABLE MS NANDI NDALANE
MEMBER OF EXECUTIVE COUNCIL: TRANSPORT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY
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STATEMENT BY
THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD

The interim Board of Directors of Gateway Airports Authority (SOC) Limited, was appointed by the Member of the Executive
Council (MEC) at the 4th quarter of the of 2016/17 financial year after the Board dissolved. This was mainly to bring stability
and leadership. The Board was appointed at the time when GAAL faced challenges of leadership instability and weak
internal controls.

During the short tenure of the interim Board, a significant amount of effort was devoted towards achieving the following
strategic priorities:





Addressing identified gaps in corporate governance imperatives and financial management at GAAL;



Capacitating the Entity with capable human capital to implement the strategic objectives of the Board of Directors;



Oversee successful implementation of the Annual Performance Plan;

Capacitating of the Sub Committees, more especially the Audit and Risk Committee, with the extension of Cluster 4 Audit Committee services to GAAL.

While there is still much to be done, this year marked improvement in revenue generation and an efficient Audit and Risk Committee was also constituted to ensure
adequate and effective controls, Risk Management and assurance framework.

Despite some persisting challenges, we are confident that with the current leadership team and the unwavering support of the Shareholder, the MEC, as well as all
stakeholders in Limpopo Province, GAAL is geared up to meet and exceed their expectations. On behalf of the interim Board, I would especially like to extend a vote
of gratitude to our Shareholder, the MEC of Transport and Community Safety, Honourable Ms Nandi Ndalane, for her guidance and immeasurable support. I would
also like to express appreciation and congratulate the Management team of GAAL. The Board is of the opinion that without their tireless dedication and effective
leadership, the entity would not have reached the milestones it has achieved today.
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OVERVIEW BY
THE ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr NW Mathonsi
Acting CEO: GAAL
I am proud to present my first annual report, having taken the office of Acting Chief Executive Officer of Gateway Airports
Authority (SOC) Limited after the turbulent waves of leadership we experienced in the Entity. I am humbled and
appreciative of the opportunity afforded to me by the Member of the Executive Council (MEC) Ms Nandi Ndalane and
the support I received from the Interim Board.

GAAL annually tables the Annual Performance Plan with its Shareholder, that is, the MEC for Transport and Community
Safety, supported by the Provincial government of Limpopo. The Entity’s Annual Performance Plan is derived from the
Corporate Strategy. Performance against the APP is tracked through quarterly reports, and ultimately through the Annual
Report. Most significantly, performance, as conveyed in the quarterly and annual reports, is duly audited by the AuditorGeneral of South Africa (AGSA) to ensure the consistency, reliability and accuracy of information reported.

Currently there is a significant improvement in terms of employment equity, especially in the appointment of women at Senior Manager level. Interventions are in place
to enhance gender equality in the Entity. Moreover, our desire is to attract, recruit and retain skilled and qualified professionals to increase efficiency and sustainability.
It was with this in mind that we appointed the Risk and Compliance Manager, the ICT Manager as well as the Company Secretary.

GAAL has further put measures in place to strengthen the financial management system within the Entity. Among other measures, is the firming up of internal controls
and further strengthening of the Supply Chain Unit.
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The government grant of R59 838 000.00 received from the Limpopo Department of Transport and Community Safety has enabled GAAL to implement programmes
whereby Air Transport in the Limpopo province can be developed and expanded. The refurbishments and facility upgrades have ensured that the airport is utilised to
capacity.

The entity is also deepening its strategic partnerships with all relevant stakeholders in the drive to maximise its value in the Limpopo Province. In so doing the
Management has realised that the other non-private airports in the Province should be unlocked through facilitating their operating licences and attracting domestic
airlines to the region where they operate. This will undoubtedly increase the capacity of GAAL as the governing body and make Polokwane International Airport the
hub of the North.

With all our strategic decisions being implemented, I am quite certain and confident that GAAL is heading towards the right direction. My greatest gratitude goes to the
Honourable MEC, Ms Nandi Ndalane as well as the Board of Directors. I am also grateful to my fellow executives as well as the entire staff of GAAL for their involvement
in flying the Airport’s flag with pride. Inkomu
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APPROVED ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
Board of Directors

Chief Executive
Officer

Company
Secretary

PA to CEO

Chief Financial
Officer
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Senior Human
Resources
Manager

Senior
Operations
Manager

Business
Development, Sales
and Marketing
Manager

Performance
Information
Manager

BOARD MEMBERS

Mr MS Mahada

Mr N Mangena

Mr TA Matsila

Mr NF Mphahlele

(Chairperson)

(Deputy Chairperson)

(Member)

(Member)
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mr NW Mathonsi

Mrs M Matli

Mrs T Mathabatha

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Senior Human Resource Manager

Chief Financial Officer
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PART B:

PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION
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1. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
1.1 SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

Global and economic challenges are the main reasons for the decrease in aircraft and passenger movement in the aviation industry. The fuel price remains one of the
costs that drive the aviation industry profitability. The unstable price impacts on the profitability and stability of our aircraft and passenger movement.

In order to minimize this negative impact on Polokwane International Airport, the Entity has revised its strategic direction to focus on development, by ensuring that the
land around the airport is utilized to its maximum potential. The major focus for the 2016/2017 financial year was to increase the non-aeronautical revenue and engage
low cost airlines that would operate from the Airport.

The Entity is also strengthening its strategic partnership with other stakeholders with a view to align and partner with them in order to maximize its value in Limpopo.
The possibility of increasing the competitiveness of Polokwane International Airport through developing small regional airports as feeders also needs to be investigated.
AIRCRAFT AND PASSENGER MOVEMENT: 2012 – 2017
Figure 1: The history of aircrafts’ movements is tabled below:
TYPE

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

2015/16

2016/17

Domestic Schedule
Domestic non-scheduled
Regional non-scheduled
International non-scheduled
TOTAL

2787
4221
590
992
13290

2448
4524
551
1010
8533

2425
3312
562
898
7197

2222
3818
562
898
7500

1810
3703
338
950
6601
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Figure 2: The history of passengers’ movements:
TYPE

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

Domestic Schedule

52 965

58 988

57879

42963

56 671

Domestic non-scheduled

7554

6916

4771

5010

4451

Regional non-scheduled

1166

1183

1183

1080

1329

International non-scheduled

1513

1671

1671

1505

1184

TOTAL

63198

68758

65504

50558

63635

1.2

KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

There has been no significant changes to GAAL’s legislative and other mandates however given the fact that the current institutional arrangements are deemed to be
a significant threat to the realisation of the strategic goals, the Limpopo Executive Council resolved that the new management model for GAAL needs to be investigated
through a possible Public Private Partnership.
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2. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
2.1 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The purpose of this annual report is to acquaint the Shareholder, being the Executive Authority of GAAL, the Limpopo Provincial Legislature, Limpopo Provincial
Treasury as well as all Stakeholders of the state of affairs of the entity for the financial year under review and to report on the performance of the entity as
measured against the pre-determined objectives which are set in the Annual Performance Plan for the 2016/2017 financial year
GAAL operates in a highly regulated industry. The main legislations governing the Airport include:
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Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Act 29 of 1999 and Treasury Regulations



Companies Act, 2008, as amended



Civil Aviation Authority Act, act No.38 as amended



Labour Relations Act No. 66 of 1995, as amended



Occupational Health and Safety Act, Act No.85 of 1993



Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, Act No.5 of 2000



Memorandum of Incorporation



King iiii



Framework for Strategic performance plan and annual performance plan (Issued by National Treasury 2009)



Framework for managing Performance Information (Issued by National Treasury 2009)

2.2 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION PER PROGRAMME
PROGRAMME

STRATEGIC GOALS

HUMAN CAPITAL AND GOVERNANCE

Highly performing and well governed organisation

FINANCE

Optimally capitalised and self-sustainable organisation

BUSINESS PROCESSES

Improved provision of world class, safe, secured and environmentally friendly
airport facilities and services

CUSTOMER AND STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT
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Increased economic growth and development of Limpopo Airports increased

2.2.1 PROGRAMME 1: HUMAN CAPITAL AND GOVERNANCE
Performance Indicator

Reporting
Period
Annual

Actual Annual

Target

Output

Comment on Deviations

Number of Records Management Reports
produced

Quarterly

4 records management
reports produced

4

None

Number of vacant positions filled

Annually

13 vacant positions filled

16

Replacement of exited employees
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Workplace skills
implemented

plan

developed

and

Quarterly

Develop and approve
workplace skills plan

Workplace
skills
plan
developed and approved but
not implemented in the 4th
Quarter

Training had been done in the previous
quarters

% Performance
implemented

management

system

Annually

Implement
performance
management system

Electronic workplace
plan implemented

None

Number of Board meetings held

Quarterly

Board meetings appointed
on three years’ term

7

The second Board dissolved and the last
Board started in the 4th Quarter

% of GAAL’s Service Delivery Improvement

Annually

100% Development and
approval
of
service
delivery improvement plan

0

Draft done and not approved

Quarterly

4 Governance compliance
templates updated

4

None

Plan developed
Number
of
Governance
templates updated
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compliance

skills

2.2.2 PROGRAMME 2: FINANCE
Performance Indicator

Reporting
Period
Annual

Actual Annual

Target

Output

Comment on Deviations

Number of Financial Statements produced
and submitted to AG by 31st May

Annually

1

1

None

Number of Income and Revenue Reports
produced and submitted to Provincial
Treasury

Quarterly

4

4

None

Number of Departmental Risk
reports produced

Annually

1

1

None

Number of procurement plans produced

Annually

1

4

Procurement plans were conducted on a quarterly basis

Number of Asset Registers verified and
updated

Bi-Annually

2

2

None

Number
of
reports
management produced

Quarterly

4

4

None
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on

profile

contracts

2.2.3 PROGRAMME 3: BUSINESS PROCESSES
Performance Indicator

Reporting
Period

% Compliance to South African Civil Aviation

budget and specifications
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Output
to

80% compliance to cat 7 of
the airport’s operating licence

None

Annually

80% compliance to cat 7 of
the airport’s operating
licence

80% compliance to cat 7 of
the airport’s operating licence

Changed from Cat 9 to Cat 7

Annually

2 Airports and 2 landing
strips

0

Feasibility studies commenced but not
completed

Annually

100%
completion
planned projects

80%

Delays in implementation and Handover

increased
% of projects completed within scope,

Target

Reasons for Variance

80%
compliance
SACAA operations

Operating License
Number of operating licenses in Limpopo

Actual Annual

Annually

Authority Operations
% Compliance to Category 9 of Airport

Annual

of

2.2.4 PROGRAMME 4: CUSTOMER AND STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT
Performance Indicator

Reporting
Period

Annual

Actual Annual

Target

Output

Comment on deviations

tool

Annually

Stakeholder satisfaction
tool
developed
and
implemented

Satisfaction tool developed
and implemented

None

Customer satisfaction tool developed
and implemented

Annually

Customer
satisfaction
tool
developed
and
implemented

Satisfaction tool developed
and implemented

None

MoU’s with Stakeholders signed by
target date

Annually

4
MoU’s
with
Stakeholders signed by
target date

4

None

Number of hangers leased

Quarterly

16 hangers leased

1

Rental rates were challenged by potential lessees

Number of quarterly performance
reports produced

Quarterly

4 quarterly performance
reports produced

4

None

Number of quarterly performance
Review sessions conducted

Quarterly

4 quarterly performance
Review
sessions
conducted

4

None

Number of Quarterly Performance
Analysis Reports produced

Quarterly

4 Quarterly Performance
Analysis
Reports
produced

4

None

Number of Annual Reports produced

Annually

1 Annual report produced

1

None

Stakeholder
satisfaction
developed and implemented
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3. BUDGET ESTIMATES
Baseline
BUDGET ELEMENTS

MTEF

2014/2015

2015/2016

2016/2017

2017/2018

2018/2019

2019/2020

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Income

6.494

8.382

20.380

16.000

17.600

19.360

-Aeronautical Income

3.638

4.911

5.077

5.500

6.050

6.655

- Non-Aeronautical Income

2.856

3.471

15.303

10.500

11.500

12.705

Govt. Grant

40.000

45.300

59.838

47.573

50.380

53.302

TOTAL REVENUE

46.494

57.509

80.218

63.573

67.980

72.662

Accounting Authority

2.020

657

1.156

1.200

1.272

1.348

Board costs

2.020

657

1.156

1.200

1.272

1.348

Company secretary

1.818

1.882

2.749

1.000

1.060

1.124

Legal fees

1.818

1.882

2.749

1.000

1.060

1.124

Compensation to employees

25.114

23.453

30.004

33.585

35.936

38.020

Goods and Services

16.542

23.895

24.136

12.289

26.807

28.438

CAPEX

-

-

22.108

13.000

-

-

Total Expenditure

46.494

49.887

80.153

61.074

65.075

68.930

REVENUE

EXPENDITURE
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3.1 REVENUE COLLECTION
2015/2016
SOURCES

OF

BUDGET

REVENUE

2016/2017
ACTUAL

AMOUNT

(OVER)/UNDER

COLLECTED

COLLECTION

BUDGET

ACTUAL AMOUNT

(OVER)/UNDER

COLLECTED

COLLECTION

Aeronautical

4.911

6.252

1.341

5.077

10.378

5.301

Non – Aeronautical

3.471

5.955

2.484

11.351

4.903

6.448

Total

8.382

12.208

3.825

16.428

15.281

11. 749

3.2 CAPITAL INVESTMENT
2015/16
INFRASTRUCTURE

BUDGET

2016/2017
ACTUAL

(OVER)/UNDER

EXPENDITURE

EXPENDITURE

PROJECTS
Conference centre upgrade and car home

BUDGET

ACTUAL

(OVER)/UNDER

EXPENDITURE

EXPENDITURE

R’000

R’000

R’000

0

0

0

4.976

3.318

1.658

Automated public pay parking’s

0

0

0

1.054

1.054

0

Masterplan and Aerotropolis Study

0

0

0

6.200

2.479

3.726

CCTV

0

0

0

7.695

6.500

1.195

Fire simulator

0

0

0

2.597

2.597

0

Air freight study

0

0

0

432

185

247

IT cabling infrastructure

0

0

0

500

500

0

23.454

16. 633

6.826

rentals development and construction

TOTAL
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PART C:

GOVERNANCE
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1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors, with the assistance of the Company Secretary is responsible for setting the right ethical tone conducive to corporate governance

2. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY/ BOARD
2.1

The Board is responsible for the performance of GAAL and is fully accountable to the Executive Authority for such performance. The Board is bound
by and shall abide by its statutory and fiduciary duties.

2.2

The Board shall act as the focal point for, and custodian of, corporate governance by managing its relationship with management, the shareholders
and other stakeholders of GAAL along the sound corporate governance principles.

2.3

The Board shall ensure that each member of the Board is fully aware of and the complies with all applicable statuses, government policies and codes
of business practises; and fulfils its roles and responsibilities as outlined in the Shareholder’s Compact.

2.4

The Board shall provide quarterly reports to the Executive Authority as required.

2.5

The Board is responsible for timeously and prudently undertaking all key activities required for the efficient and effective running of GAAL, including
but not limited to appointment of senior executives to GAAL and capital decisions within the ordinary course of business.

2.6

The Board shall provide effective leadership on an ethical foundation and ensure that GAAL’s ethics are managed effectively.

2.7

The Board shall be responsible for the governance of risk and Information Technology.

2.8

The Board shall ensure that GAAL has an effective and independent audit committee.

2.9

The Board of Directors will disclose any personal interest in decisions taken by the Board in the conflict register. The Directors of the Board agree to
be individually and severally liable pursuant to the PFMA and the Companies Act for fraud, reckless trading, failure to disclose interest in contracts,
falsifying books and records or making false statements.

2.10

The Directors shall submit financial disclosure forms in April of every financial year.

2.11

The Directors may elect a Chairperson and a Deputy Chairperson and determine the period for which they are to hold office.
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3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
GAAL had 3 different Boards in the 2016/17 financial year. The 1st Board served from the 15 August 2015 until 31 July 2016 and are listed hereunder:

NAME

DESIGNATION

DATE APPOINTED

DATE RESIGNED

QUALIFICATIONS

BOARD DIRECTORSHIP

Ms G Sengoara

Chairperson

15 Aug 2015

07 Nov 2016

Master of Bus. Leadership

GAAL

Ms B Nkambule

Deputy Chair

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

BA: Education

GAAL

Mr LJ Matshekga

Member

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

Master of Bus. Admin

GAAL

Mr KC Mogashoa

Member

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

BA: Administration

GAAL

Mr ME Rasefate

Member

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

BA (Hons): Administration

GAAL

The 2nd Board took office from the 01 Sep 2016 until the 07 Nov 2016:

NAME

DESIGNATION

DATE APPOINTED

DATE RESIGNED

BOARD DIRECTORSHIP

Ms G Sengoara

Chairperson

15 Aug 2015

07 Nov 2016

GAAL

Mr ME Rasefate

Deputy Chair

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

GAAL

Adv E Mphahlele

Member

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

GAAL

Ms T Sethaelo

Member

15 Aug 2015

31 July 2016

GAAL
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The 3rd and last Board was the interim Board which was appointed in January for the purpose of bringing leadership and stability while the MEC appointed
a new Board for a term of three years.

NAME

DESIGNATION

Mr MS Mahada

Chairperson

DATE

DATE

APPOINTED

RESIGNED

26 Jan 2017

31 May 2017

QUALIFICATIONS

AREA

National Dip: HR
Advanced

OF

BOARD

OTHER

EXPERTISE

DIRECTORSHIP

COMMITTEES

Operations

GAAL

None

Audit and Risk

GAAL

Operation

Dip:

Management
Mr TA Matsila

Deputy Chair

26 Jan 2017

31 May 2017

BA

Juris

(Hons)

Criminalis
Mr

NF

Member

26 Jan 2017

31 May 2017

Mphahlele

B

Tech:

&

Business
Public

Audit and Risk

GAAL

Audit & Risk

Human

GAAL

HR & Ethics

Administration
Certificate:

Road

Transports
Certificate:

Labour

Relations
Mr N Mangena

Member

26 Jan 2017

31 May 2017

BA (Hons): Administration

Resources

4. REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD

The Interim Board was never remunerated as they were government employees under the Department of Transport and Community Safety.

5. BOARD MEETINGS
The Board meetings are scheduled in advance. The Board meets monthly to determine policies, deliberate on essential business issues that arouse and to
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evaluate the performance of the Executive Management of the Authority. Urgent matters are discussed during special that are convened if and when necessary.

The interim Board meeting attendance register during the last quarter of 2016/17 financial year is as follows:

BOARD MEMBER

17 Feb 2017

23 March 2017

19 April 2017

Mr MS Mahada

Present

Present

Present

Mr TA Matsila

Present

Present

Present

Mr NF Mphahlele

Present

Present

Present

Mr N Mangena

Present

Present

Present

6. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

During the year under review the interim Board established three committees:


Audit and Risk Committee



Operations and Business Committee



Human Resources, Social and Ethical Committee

Committee

No. of meetings
held

Audit and Risk Committee

1

No.
of
Members
4

Operations Committee

0

3

Human Resources, Social and Ethical
Committee

2

3
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Committee Members
Mr Mphahlele
Mr Matsila
Mrs Mathabatha
Mr Maluleke (Chief Accountant)
Mr Matsila
Mr Mathonsi
Mr Netshifhefhe (Ops Manager)
Mr Mangena
Mrs Matli (Senior HRM)
Mr Mathonsi (ACEO)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Risk Management unit was established but not capacitated in the year under review. 16 risks were identified, of which 7 risks had a high residual rating,
8 had a rating of medium and 1 had a low rating. The Risk management policy and strategy were approved in the 2016/17 financial year. The Entity has also
conducted quarterly risk assessments.
Due to the fact that the Risk Management Committee was not effective, the implementation of the risk mitigation measures only commenced in the last quarter
of 2016/17 financial year.

8. ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY
The Anti- Fraud and Corruption Policy was approved however not effectively implemented and that was due to challenges of incapacities in the Division.

9. COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary during the 2016/17 financial year was BATYAH (PTY) LTD whose service was terminated on the 17 March 2017. A full time Company
Secretary has been appointed in the last month of the same year.
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PART D:

HUMAN RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT
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1. OVERVIEW
The focus of the Human Resources Division for the 2016/17 financial year, was on addressing the long-standing challenge of leadership stability by filing
vacant management positions. This includes the appointment of the Company Secretary, Risk and Compliance Manager and ICT Manager. Ten (10) other
junior positions were also filled to deal with implementation activities in order to enable GAAL’s Management team to focus on strategic management. The
focus of management was to provide decisive and strategic leadership, enhance financial management, putting internal controls and measures in place,
organisational stability and performance, enhanced governance and organisational performance.

GAAL regards all employees as necessary intellectual capital charged with the task of executing the strategy of the Entity. GAAL conducted a skills audit in
order to identify gaps in its skills base and provide training and development to ensure that employees are equipped with necessary skills to meet the Entity’s
objectives. The Entity also encourages and supports all staff to upgrade their qualifications and make GAAL an organization which strives for excellence. 13
Interns were appointed as part of a skills development and capacity building strategy.

Nineteen (19) employees were given long service awards as a token of appreciation for their integral commitment and dedication to GAAL.

2. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
PROGRAMME

PERSONNEL

%

OF

PERSONNEL

EXPENDITURE

EXPENDITURE TO TOTAL

NO.

OF

AVERAGE PERSONNEL COST

EMPLOYEES

PER EMPLOYEE (R’000)

PERSONNEL COST
Business Processes

R 16 571 969.19

57.40%

49

R 720 520.39

Administration

R 10 260 976.15

35.54%

23

R 2 052 195.23

Business Development

R 2 039 474.47

7.06%

5

R 41 621.92

TOTAL

R 28 872 419.81

100.00%

77

R 2 814 337.54
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3. LEVELS
LEVEL

PERSONNEL

%

OF

PERSONNEL

EXPENDITURE

EXPENDITURE TO TOTAL

NO.

OF

AVERAGE PERSONNEL COST

EMPLOYEES

PER EMPLOYEE (R’000)

PERSONNEL COST
Top Management

R 2 079 451.69

7.20%

2

R 1 039 725.84

Senior Management

R 2 69 046.51

0.93%

3

R 89 682.17

Professional Qualified

R 2 755 387.28

9.54%

5

R 551 077.45

Skilled

R 5 926 805.87

20.53%

13

R 455 908.14

Semi-Skilled

R 14 788 357.42

51.22%

52

R 284 391.48

Unskilled

R 353 371.04

1.22%

2

R 176 685.52

TOTAL

R 28 872 419.81

90.65%

77

R 2 597 470.60

4. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES
PROGRAMME
Business Processes
Administration
Business Development
Total
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VACANCIES
8
3
2
13

APPOINTMENTS
8
3
2
13

TERMINATIONS
1
1
1
3

5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES
Reasons for employees leaving
REASON

NUMBER

Percentage

Resignations

3

5.2%

End of Contract

4

5.2%

Dismissal

0

0%

Total

7

10.4%

6. LABOUR RELATIONS, MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION
NATURE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Misconduct
Disciplinary Actions
Total

NUMBER
0
2
2

7. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

LEVEL
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi- Skilled
Unskilled
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AFRICAN
2
3
5
12
52
2

COLOURED
0
0
0
0
0
0

INDIAN
0
0
0
0
0
0

WHITE
0
0
0
1
0
0

PART E:

FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
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1 Report of the auditor-general to Limpopo Provincial Legislature on Gateway
Airports Authority Limited
1.1 Report on the audit of the financial statements
1.1.1 Opinion
1.

I have audited the financial statements of the Gateway Airports Authority Limited set out on pages … to … which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement
of comparison of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

2.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gateway Airports Authority Limited as at
31 March 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice
and the PFMA and Companies Act of South Africa.

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.
4. I am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional
accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.
5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Emphasis of matter paragraphs
6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Significant uncertainties
7.

With reference to note 25 to the financial statements, the entity is the defendant in several legal claims. The entity is opposing the claims as it
believes the claims to be unjustified. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot currently be determined and no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the financial statements.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
8.

As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the entity incurred fruitless expenditure of R 459 833 (2017: R 655 631) due to interest and
penalties incurred on late payments.

Irregular expenditure
9.

As disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, the entity incurred irregular expenditure amounting to R 4 382 871 (2016: R 676 487) due to noncompliance with supply chain management (SCM) requirements

Restatement of corresponding figures
10. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for
31 March 2016 have been restated as a result of errors discovered in the financial statements of the entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March
2017.

Other matter paragraphs
11. The following other matter paragraphs will be included in our auditor’s report to draw the users’ attention to matters regarding the audit, the auditor’s
responsibilities and the auditor’s report:
Unaudited supplementary schedules
12. The supplementary information set out on pages xx to xx does not form part of the financial statements and is presented as additional information.
I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

1.1.2 Responsibilities of the accounting authority
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13. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice and the PFMA and Companies Act of South Africa and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
14. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the Gateway Airports Authority Limited’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
there is an intention either to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

1.1.3 Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
15. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
16. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to the auditor’s report.

1.2 Report on the audit of the annual performance report
1.2.1 Introduction and scope
17. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a
responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
18. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance planning documents of the
entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My
procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future
periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
19. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance
management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2017:
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Programmes

Pages in annual performance report

Programme 3 – Business processes

26 – 27

20. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and whether performance was
consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related
targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid,
accurate and complete.
21. The material findings of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programme is as follows:

Programme 3 – Business processes
Indicator 1: Percentage compliance to South African Civil Aviation Authority operations
22. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of the target. This was due to the systems and processes
to enable reliable reporting of actual service delivery against the indicator not being adequately designed, as required by the National Treasury’s
Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information (FMPPI) . Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were
required to the reported achievement of 80% compliance with category 7 of the airport’s operating licence.
Indicator 2: Percentage compliance to category 9 of the airport’s operating licence by 2018
23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of the target. This was due to the systems and processes
to enable reliable reporting of actual service delivery against the indicator not being designed adequately, as required by the FMPPI. Consequently,
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 80% compliance with category 7 of the airport’s
operating licence.
Indicator 3: Number of airport operating licences in Limpopo increased
24. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of the target. This was due to the systems and processes
to enable reliable reporting of actual service delivery against the indicator not being designed adequately, as required by the FMPPI. Consequently,
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievement of nil operating licences in Limpopo being increased.
Indicator 4: Percentage projects completed within scope, budgets and specifications
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25. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of the target. This was due to the systems and processes
to enable reliable reporting of actual service delivery against the indicator not being adequately designed, as required by the FMPPI. Consequently,
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 80% of projects completed within scope, budget
and specifications.
2.1.1 Other matter
26. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Achievement of planned targets
27. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 24 to 28 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations
provided for the under/overachievement of a number of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in paragraphs 22, 23, 24 and 25 of this report.

1.3 Report on audit of compliance with legislation
1.3.1 Introduction and scope
28. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of
the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
29. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable subject matters are as follows:
Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports
30. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework as required by
section 55(1)(b) of the PFMA and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act (Registered Companies).
Material misstatements of non-current assets, liabilities, expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statement were corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Expenditure management
31. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R 4 632 310 as disclosed in note 8 to the annual financial
statements, as required by treasury regulation 9.1.1 and section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
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32. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R 459 833, as disclosed in note 7 to the annual financial
statements, in contravention of section treasury regulation 9.1.1 and section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA
Asset management
33. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by sections 50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the PFMA.
Procurement and contract management
34. Goods, works or service were not procured through a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent and competitive, as required by
section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.
35. Contracts were awarded to bidders based on preferential points that were not allocated and calculated in accordance with the requirements of the
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000) (PPPFA) and its regulations.
36. Contracts were awarded to bidders that had not scored the highest points in the evaluation process, as required by section 2(1)(f) of PPPFA and
Preferential procurement regulations.

1.4 Other information
37. The entity’s accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report which includes the director’s report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act.
The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected programmes presented in the
annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the auditor’s report.
38. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other
information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
39. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.
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1.5 Internal control deficiencies
I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and compliance with applicable
legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal
control deficiencies that resulted in, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

1.5.1 Leadership
40. Leadership did not always take prompt and adequate action to address weaknesses in internal control, which resulted in non-compliance with
applicable legislation and gave rise to irregular, and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

1.5.2 Financial and performance management
41. Effective performance management systems processes and procedures, and the management thereof, had not been adequately developed and
implemented as a result of the slow response to audit findings.

1.5.3 Governance
42. The accounting authority did not promote accountability through ensuring that there are consequences for transgressing legislation requirements
which resulted in an increase in the irregular expenditure.
Polokwane
31 July 2017
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Financial statements
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Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

General Information
Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Directors

Mathonsi WN
Mahada S
Mangena N
Matsila A
Mphahlele N

Business address

N1 North to Makhado

Polokwane
0699
Bankers

ABSA Bank

Auditor's

Auditor-General South Africa
Registered Auditor

Secretary

Batyah (Pty) Ltd

Company registration number

1995/002792/06

Level of assurance

These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and PFMA

Act no.1 of 1999.
Preparer
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The financial statements were internally compiled by:
T.M Mathabatha
Chief Financial Officer

Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the shareholders:
Index

Page

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
Directors' Report

3
4

-5

Statement of Financial Position

6

Statement of Comprehensive Income

7

Statement of Changes in Equity

8

Statement of Cash Flows

9

Accounting Policies

10 - 22

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 - 39

The following supplementary information does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited:
Detailed Income Statement

40 - 41

Level of assurance
These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act 71 of
2008 and PFMA Act no.1 of 1999.
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Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and PFMA Act no.1 of 1999 , to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in
this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at
the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the SA
GAAP. The Auditor General of South Africa is engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the SA GAAP and are based upon appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in
the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2018 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The financial statements set out on page 4 to 35, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the board on
and were signed on its behalf by:
Approval of financial statements

Mr W Mathonsi
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Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Directors' Report
The accounting authority submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2017
1. Incorporation
The company was incorporated in South Africa on 01 March 1995 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the
same day.
2. Review of activities
Main business and operations
The company is engaged in the provision and maintenance of services and infrustructure of the Polokwane International
Airport and operates principally in South Africa.
The entity operates as a schedule 3D public entity , as set out in Public Finance Management Act.
Business Adress

N1 North to Makhado
Polokwane
0699

3. Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
4. Events after the reporting period
Adjusting events after reporting period
The entity received a court summon from a former board member for unfair dismissal on 18 May 2017. This resulted in an
adjustment to the contingent liability amounting R11 686 605.
The entity received a court order on 26 May 2017 in resspect of the case relating to Millionaire Lounge, legal costs for each
party will be borne by themselves.
The entity received an arbitration for an unfair dismissal of an employee and the award rendered highlighted that a dismissal
was both procedurally and substantively fair. The dispute was therefore dismissed.
5. Taxation
The company is exempted for income tax in terms of Section 10(1) (cN) of the income Tax Act.
6. Authorised and issued share capital
There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital of GAAL during the year under review.
7. Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid to shareholder during the year.
8. Secretary
The company secretary during the year under review was BATYAH (PTY) LTD.
9. Directors
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
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Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Directors' Report
Directors
Mathonsi WN
Mahada S

Office
Acting Chief Executive
Officer
Chairperson

Mangena N

Deputy Chairperson

Matsila A

ARC Chairperson

Mphahlele N

OPS Chaiperson

Designation
Executive

Nationality
South African

Changes
Appointed 26 January 2017

Non - Executive
LDOT
Non - Executive
LDOT
Non - Executive
LDOT
Non - Executive
LDOT

South African

Appointed 26 January 2017

South African

Appointed 26 January 2017

South African

Appointed 26 January 2017

South African

Appointed 26 January 2017

10. Auditors
Auditor-General South Africa will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 and
Section 4 of Public Audit Act.
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Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017
2017
Note(s)

R

2016
Restated *
R

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

3
4
5

9
11

Total Assets

99 932 818
22 666 557
209 453

96 969 886
21 117 000
298 629

122 808 828

118 385 515

3 677 375
2 578 939

4 413 966
12 594 436

6 256 314

17 008 402

129 065 142

135 393 917

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Retained income

12

12
78 247 846

12
90 578 239

78 247 858

90 578 251

186 906
33 932 343

189 805
36 195 530

34 119 249

36 385 335

13 179 317
2 263 187
1 255 531

5 279 522
2 263 187
887 622

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long service award liability
Deferred grant income

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred grant income
Provisions

6
14

13
14
15

16 698 035

8 430 331

Total Liabilities

50 817 284

44 815 666

Total Equity and Liabilities

129 065 142
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135 393 917

Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income
2017

Revenue
Other income
Operating expenses
Operating deficit
Investment revenue
Fair value adjustments
Finance costs

Note(s)

R

16
17

15 414 995
54 752 545
(82 885 624)

17 075 644
42 000 398
(66 984 747)

(12 718 084)
450 443
(15 207)

(7 908 705)
370 795
(4 881 000)
(18 211)

(12 282 848)

(12 437 121)

(47 545)

10 314

(12 330 393)

(12 426 807)

19
20
21

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains and losses on long service
Total comprehensive loss for the year
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R

23
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Statement of Changes in Equity
R

Retained
income
R

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2015
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

12
-

103 005 046
(12 437 121)
10 314

103 005 058
(12 437 121)
10 314

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

(12 426 807)

(12 426 807)

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior period error

12

86 719 734

86 719 746

-

3 858 505

3 858 505

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2016 as restated
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

12
-

90 578 239
(12 282 848)
(47 545)

90 578 251
(12 282 848)
(47 545)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

(12 330 393)

(12 330 393)

Balance at 31 March 2017

12

78 247 846

Note(s)

12

23

Share capital
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R
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Statement of Cash Flows
2017
Note(s)

R

2016
Restated *
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations
Interest income
Finance costs

24

Net cash from operating activities

70 703 654
(66 581 390)

63 163 359
(55 784 735)

4 122 264
450 443
(15 207)

7 378 624
370 795
(18 211)

4 557 500

7 731 208

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Refurbishment of investment property
Purchase of other intangible assets

3
4
5

(12 982 427)
(1 549 557)
(41 013)

Net cash from investing activities

(14 572 997)

Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year

(10 015 497)
12 594 436

Total cash at end of the year
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11

2 578 939

(996 705)
(996 705)
6 734 503
5 859 933
12 594 436
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Accounting Policies
1.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practices. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for measurement of investment
properties and certain financial instruments at fair value, , and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They
are presented in South African Rands which is the company's functional currency. The entity is in the process of complying with
Directive 12.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations,
which would significantly affect the financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
The entity's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for these assets.These
estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to the specific entity. Management will increase or decrease the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values of the underlying items changes.
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equiptment and intangable assets are determined with
reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items.The useful lives and residual values of assets are based
on management's estimation of the asset's condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use,
expected future use and the entity's expectations about the availability of finance to replace the assets at the end of its useful
life. In evaluating the how condition and use of the asset, informs the useful life and residual value management considers the
impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.
Impairment testing
In testing for , and determining the value -in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use of
estimates about the asset's ability to continue to generate cash flows in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-cash
generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the
asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.
Long service award liability
Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future long service award obligations as set out in note 7 and are updated
periodically. The principal assumptions relate to the discount rate and demographic dynamics such the mortality rate and inservice withdrawal rate.
Estimation of fair value of investment properties
DEPRECIATION REPLACEMENT COST OF IMPROVEMENTS
Due to the specialised nature of the subject property and considering the lack of comparable sales of similar type of properties,
the applicable valuation method for the improvements components of the subject property is the depreciated replacement cost
approach.
The market value, of the improvements component of the subject property, is established by determining the current estimated
replacement cost of same and applying depreciation allowances, attributed to physical deterioration, funtional - and economical
obsolescene, to the ascertained estimated replacement cost.
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1.2 Additional Note
1.3 Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental or for capital appreaciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business or use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is stated at fair value.
Investment property is valued once every three years using the net current replacement valuation method. The fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if neccesary, for any diffrence in the nature, or location or condition of the specific
assets.
Any gain or loss arising from the change in fair value is recognized in profit and loss in the period to which it relates.
1.4 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisation of the asset. The cost of self constructed assets
includes the cost of materials, direct labour costs and any other costs attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition
for its intended use.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equiptment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item of plant and are recognized within
"other income" in the profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement
The cost of replacing part of an item of plant and equiptment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The cost of the day to day servicing of plant and equiptment are
recognized in profit and loss as incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the esitimated useful lives of each part of an item of
plant and equiptment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.
:
Item
Leasehold imrpovements
Furniture and fittings
Plant and machinery
Runway lights and air traffic equiptment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Electronic equipment
Computer equipment
Ground handling equipment
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Depreciation method
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Average useful life
20
6
4-10
5
4
3-6
2-15
3
5-6
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reclassification of investment property.
Property that is being constructed for future use as an investment property is accounted for as property, plant and equipment
until construction or development is compete, at which time it is reclassified as investment property.
1.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognized when:








it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 
there is an ability to use or sell it. 
it will generate probable future economic benefits. 



there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset. 



the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are carried as cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these
intangible assets, but they are tested to impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.
Internally generated brands mastheads,publishing titles, customers lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis.
Item
Computer software, other

Useful life
5

1.6 Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial instruments, on intial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement:
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the company's statement of financial performance when the entity
becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable , which are measured at cost and are classified as available for sale financial assets.
The company does not off-set a financial asset and a financial liability unless a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts currently exists; and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Fair value methods and assumptions
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the entity establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis , and option pricing
models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The effective interest rate method
The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating the
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial instruments.
Non - derivative financial instrument
For financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of
the instrument.
Amortized cost
Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial instrument is measured at initial recognition minus principle repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectibility.
Measurement
Initial measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, plus in the case of financial instruments not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments. Where the effect of
any extended payment terms is not material no adjustments are made. The fair value of financial instruments is normally the
transaction price, but may be affected by other factors which the entity takes into account when measuring fair value. Regular
way purchases or sales are recognised using trade date accounting. All other financial instruments are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contract.
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Subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Loans and receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- (designated and held for trading)
Financial assets held to maturity.
Available for sale financial assets.

Financial assets for which a reliable fair value cannot practically be determined are carried at cost.
Trade and other receivables
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
impairment loss. Interest income is recognised in the income statement by applying the effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an provision account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable , it is written off against the provision account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit
or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise demand deposits and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Where term deposits exceed three
months, they are classified under another class or financial instruments, depending on the nature. Cash and cash equivalents
are subsequently recorded at fair value which always approximates face value.
Impairment
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is determined.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and
default of payments are also considered indicators of impairment.
An impairment loss in respect to a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characters.
All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
Non - Financial assets
The carrying amount of the company's non financial assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is recovered if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.l
Held to maturity
Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the entity
has the positive intent and ability to hold maturity. Held to maturity investments are subsequently recorded are amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised in the income statement by applying the
effective interest rate.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories:
i.
ii.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
Trade and other payables are included in financial liabilities held at amortised cost.
Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
An interest expense is recognised in the statement by applying the effective interest rate.
De-recognition
The entity derecognises a financial asset when and only when:
The rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire; or
It transfers the financial assets and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.
The entity transfers a financial asset, if and only if, it either
Transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset; or
Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset.
The entity removes a financial liability from its balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished.
1.7 VAT
The entity is registered to pay VAT on an invoice basis. In terms of the former, VAT is payable during the tax period in which
customers were invoiced for the goods or services supplied to them.
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1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the amount recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.
Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
At the commencement of the lease term, lessees shall recognise assets acquired under finance leases as assets and the
associated lease obligations as liabilities in their statement of financial position. The assets and liabilities shall be recognized at
amounts equal to their value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate to be used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease
payments is the interest rate shall be used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognized as an asset.
Minimum lease payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge shall be allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Contingent rents shall be charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term of lease. The
difference between the amount recognized as an expense and the contractual payments are recognized as an operating lease
asset or liability.
Any contingent rentals are expensed in the period they are incurred.
1.9 Impairment of assets
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets or goodwill may be impaired.
If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
1.10 Share capital and equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs are directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
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1.11 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service
and is not discounted.
The accrual for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the company has a
present obligation to pay as a result of employee services provided to the statement of financial position date. The accruals
have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.
The Company policy based on the Basic Conditions of Employment Act entails the following:

Actual leave entitlement afforded to employees by the Company is 21 and 24 working days leave per annum for
employees on 5 and 6 working days per week respectively and leave entitlement in terms of timing and duration is
within the confines of the statute. 

Annual leave days that have not been utilized at the end of a leave cycle should be utilized within six (6) months of
the following leave cycle. Failure to comply will results in accumulated leave days being forfeited at the last day of
the sixth (6) months of the following leave cycle. 
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.
Past service costs are recognised immediately as an expense.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss when the company is
demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement.
When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In the statement of income and retained earnings , the expense
relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.
1.12 Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to industry -managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where
the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

The entity's operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are held in a separate trustee administered fund. The
pension fund is funded by payments from the entity. The entity's contribution to the defined contribution plan are charged to the
statement of financial performance in the year to which they relate.
For defined contribution plans, the entity pays contributions to publicly and private administrated pension insurance plans on a
contractual basis. Once the contributions have been paid, the entity has no further payment obligations. The regular
contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due, as such are included in staff costs. The accruals
for employee entitlements to wages , salaries, annual and sick leave represent the amount that the entity has a present
obligation to pay as a result of employees' services provided up to the reporting date. The accruals have been calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.
1.13 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

the entity has a present obligation as a result of past event; 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and 
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. The entity
uses a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks for which future cash flow
estimates have been adjusted. The entity does not discount the liability where the time value of money is not material.
Contingent liabilities:

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or 

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 
i.
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
ii.
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent assets:
Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurence
or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial
statement.
1.14 Government grants
The Entity receives Grants from Limpopo Department of Transport for infrastructure development and operational costs. Grants
are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognizes as expenses the related
costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.
Grant in recognition of specific expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the same period as the relevant expenses. Similarly
, grants related to depreciable assets are recognized in profit or loss over the periods and in the proportions in which depreciation
expense on those assets is recognized.
Grants utilized in the acquisition of non-depreciable assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which expenditure is incurred.
1.15 Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Aeronautical revenue.
Aeronautical revenue consists of the following:

Landing fees: Landing fees for non-scheduled charter flights are determined by using regulated tariffs for the aircraft
landing based on the maximum take -off weight of landing aircraft for each landing. Landing fees for scheduled flights
are based on agreed fees between the Airport and the Airline. 

Passenger service charges: Passenger service charges for non-scheduled flights are based on the regulated tariffs
for each departing passenger at an airport of departure, 
Passenger service charges for scheduled flights are based on agreed fees between the Airport and the Airline. 

Aircraft parking: Aircraft parking fees are determined by using regulated tariffs for each aircraft parked for over an
hour based on the maximum take-off weight of aircraft parking per 24-hour period. 

Baggage handling: Baggage handling fees are determined by using regulated tariffs per each baggage based on the
maximum take-off weight for each baggage. 

Approaching fees are determined by using regulated tariffs per each aircraft approaching GAAL space and is based
on the maximum take-off weight for each baggage. 
Non-Aeronautical revenue
Non-aeronautical revenuwe consist of the following:

Rental income: Revenue is generated through the rental of offices, parking fees, aviation fuel depots and long-term
rental agreements on investment properties. 
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1.15 Revenue (continued)

Interest on Term Deposits: Interest on term deposits is recognised on a time apportionment basis, taking account of
the principle amount outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is probable that such
income will accrue to the company. 

Conference revenue: Conference revenue is based on a predetermined usage rate per day of usage over the
maximum number of days used. 
Agent Relationship
The entity has an agent relationship with ATNS for the billing of the approaching fees. ATNS act for and on behalf of the
entity . The entity bears significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering of services. The ATNS follows
GAAL terms and condition and assumes an obligation of duties towards the GAAL.
1.16 Related parties
GAAL's related parties include entities directly or indirectly owned by the Limpopo Department of Transport.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity. The entity regards all individuals from the level of Executive Manager up to the Board of Directors as key
management per the definition of the standard.
Close family members of the key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by key management individuals in their dealings with the entity.
Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard. The objective of the standard
and the financial statements is to provide relevant and reliable information and therefore materiality is considered in the
disclosure of these transactions.
1.17 Commitments
Commitment arises when a decision is made to incur a liability. Such a decision is evidenced by, but not limited to, actions taken
to determine the amount of the eventual resource outflow or a reliable estimate and conditions to be satisfied to establish an
obligation.
Commitments are not recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position , but disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. A commitment becomes a liability generally when the intention becomes a present obligation.
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1.18 Financial risk management
Financial risk management
The entity recognises that an effective risk management function is fundamental to its business. Taking international best
practice into account, our comprehensive risk management process involves identifying understanding and managing the risks
associated with each of GAAL's businesses units.
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss to the entity as a result of the failure by a customer or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations.
Credit risk also includes cash deposits and cash equivalents. The entity only deposits cash with banks approved by national
treasury. The credit risk that GAAL faces arises mainly from commercial and aeronautical business. These risks are mitigated
by the guarantees held for the exposure at a given period, where applicable. Credit risks can also arise from cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivables and derivative financial instruments.
Trade and other receivables
The entity's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the entity's customer base, including the default rate of the industry and country in which customers operate, has less of an
influence on credit risk.
The entity establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. The main components of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates to individually significant
exposures, and a collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial
assets. Customers that fail to meet the entity's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the entity only on a
prepayment/cash basis. More than 60% of the entity's customers have been transacting with the entity for over 3 years, and
losses have occurred infrequently. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are classified according to their credit
characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are aeronautical, commercial or retail
customer, geographic location, industry , aging profile, maturity and existence of previous financial difficulties.
Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the enity's aeronautical and commercial customers. Customers that are graded as
"high risk"are placed on a restricted customer list, and future transactions are made on prepayment basis with approval based
on the Treasury Regulations.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that GAAL's earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives, will be adversely affected by
changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices.
The main market risk arises from treasury activities and both aeronautical and no aeronautical business.
The entity has developed analytical tools that are used to perform various analyses in order to assess the impact of market
risk on business and to identity mitigates to manage the risk within approved tolerance levels.
Tariff risk
The entity has no regulatory strategy which seeks to proactively influence the regulatory approach in line with best practice . In
this regard, the entity does not actively manage the economic regulatory risk.
Liquidity and funding risk
Liquidity and funding risk of not being able to generate sufficient cash to honour financial commitments. In GAAL it refers
particularly to the risk of GAAL not being able to advance funds for capital expenditure, finance operational costs and service
unanticipated financial commitments.
The entity's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure , as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses ir risking damage to the
entity's reputation. The entity therefore places its funds in short term deposits that are readily available.
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1.19 Irregular espenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including
(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1998 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement precedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such
an instance , no further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be atrributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immeadiate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the expenditure register must be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure
has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.
1.20 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
-overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
- expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the
purpose of the main division.
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial perfomance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
1.21 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditures is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial perfomance according to the
nature of the payment and not as separate line item on the face of the statement. If the expenditure is recoverable, it is treated
as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial
perfomance.
1.22 Going concern
These financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for the
foreseeable future. The entity has a number of plans for generating its revenue. The bulk of the entity's revenue is tied in the
land ownership challenge for the entity.
The land where the entity operates os owned by the National Department of Public Works and plans are in progress for the
land to be handed over to GAAL to unlock commercial development opportunities. The entity also owns number of hangars on
the airside and has received interest from service providers to rent out facilities to them. The entity also has a plan to attract
other scheduled regional and domestic airlines to consider the Airport as their destination of choice. The Department of
Transport has approved a total grant of R59.8 million for the 2016/2017 financial year.
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1.23 Rounding
Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest Rand.
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2017
R

2016
R

2. Risk management
Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the
impact of netting agreements.
At 31 March 2017
Trade and other payables
Long service awards
Long service awards

At 31 March 2017
Trade and other payables
Long service award

At 31 March 2016
Trade and other payables
Long service award

At March 2017
Trade and other payables
Long service award

At March 2016
Trade and other payables
Long service award

10 545 425
82 569
104 337

3 247 206
82 569
107 236

10 732 331

3 437 011

Carrying
Amount
10 545 425
186 906

10 545 425
186 906

10 732 331

10 732 331

Carrying
Amount
3 247 206
189 805

3 247 206
189 805

3 437 011

3 437 011

Total

Carrying
Amount
10 545 425
186 906

10 545 425
186 906

10 732 331

10 732 331

Carrying
Amount
3 247 206
189 805
3 437 011
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0-12 Months
3 247 206
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2017
R

2016
R

2. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate sensitivy analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on financial exposure to interest rates at the reporting date. For
floating rate instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the instrument outstanding at the reporting date for
the whole period and that all other variables remain constant in the sensitivity calculation.
The basis point increase or decrease, as detailed in the table below, was determined by management and represent
management's assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates.
A positive below indicates an increase in surplus, while a negative indicate the opposite.
The sensitivity analysis shows reasonable expected changes in the interest rate, either an increase or decrease in interest %.
The equal but opposite % adjustment to the interest rate would result in an equal but opposite effect on surplus."
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the entities interest bearing financial instruments was:
Cash and cash equivalents (upward change 1%)
Cash and cash equivalents (downward change 1%)
Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was R3 612 435
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R

2016
R

16 881 308
118 545
(13 322 478)

13 002 049
887 613
(9 676 173)

3 677 375

4 213 489

16 881 308
(13 322 478)

13 202 526
(9 676 173)

3 558 830

3 526 353

2 543 629
-

1 025 242
1 726 514

2 543 629

2 751 756

2 543 629
-

1 025 242
1 726 514

2 543 629

2 751 756

9 676 173
3 646 305
-

1 985 468
622 536
7 068 169

2. Risk management (continued)
Financial instrument
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid expense
Impairement of trade receivables

Net carrying amount of trade receivables
Trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
31-90 days
>90 days

The ageing of these receivables past due but not impaired
1 to 3 months
4 to 6 months

Reconciliations of doubtful debts
Opening Balance
Increase/(reversal) of provision
Prior period error

13 322 478
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R

2016
R

3. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

2017
Accumulated Carrying value Cost

2016
Accumulated Carrying value

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Leasehold improvements
Runway lights and air traffic
equiptment
Electric equiptment
Other property, plant and
equipment
Capital work in progress

3 179 109
5 167 311
15 275 131
1 038 059
2 632 188
127 440 205
8 259 806

depreciation
(1 495 707)
(3 961 202)
(13 853 508)
(668 083)
(1 784 478)
(48 906 481)
(8 031 827)

1 683 402
1 206 109
1 421 623
369 976
847 710
78 533 724
227 979

2 295 683
4 892 522
15 069 176
907 556
2 537 298
124 055 011
8 259 806

depreciation
(1 239 484)
(3 436 845)
(13 607 904)
(575 484)
(1 454 172)
(42 091 712)
(7 875 645)

1 056 199
1 455 677
1 461 272
332 072
1 083 126
81 963 299
384 161

17 356 535
6 312 309

(11 001 434)
(5 030 776)

6 355 101
1 281 533

17 356 535
6 312 309

(10 033 419)
(4 401 345)

7 323 116
1 910 964

8 005 661

-

8 005 661

-

-

-

Total

194 666 314

(94 733 496)

99 932 818

181 685 896

(84 716 010)

96 969 886

Opening
balance
1 056 199
1 455 677
1 461 272
332 072
1 083 126
81 963 299
384 161
7 323 116
1 910 964
-

Additions

Depreciation

Total

883 427
276 481
205 954
129 655
96 055
3 385 194
8 005 661

(256 224)
(526 049)
(245 603)
(92 599)
(330 305)
(6 814 769)
(156 182)
(968 015)
(629 431)
-

1 683 402
1 206 109
1 421 623
369 976
847 710
78 533 724
227 979
6 355 101
1 281 533
8 005 661

96 969 886

12 982 427

(10 019 177)

99 932 818

Depreciation Impairment
loss
(239 242)
(38 000)
(476 372)
(66 244)
(221 791)
(50 005)
(43 959)
(335 992)
(28 426)
(6 799 242)
(122 061)
-

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Runway lights and air traffic equipment
Electric equipment
Baggage handiling equipment
Capital work in progress

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Runway lights and air traffic
equipment
Electric equipment
Baggage handiling equipment

Opening
balance
1 117 824
531 795
822 576
39 886
443 763
92 196 510
661 521

Additions
163 763
240 295
210 105
358 616
23 926

Prior year
Adjustment
51 854
1 226 203
910 492
126 040
645 165
(3 433 969)
(179 225)

6 410 755
436 654

-

3 191 997
2 109 872

(1 097 710)
(632 242)

(1 181 926)
(3 320)

7 323 116
1 910 964

102 661 284

996 705

4 648 429

(9 968 611)

(1 367 921)

96 969 886

1 056 199
1 455 677
1 461 272
332 072
1 083 126
81 963 299
384 161

Impairment and reversal of impairment
Impairment was applied to assets with a carrying amount of R7 143.21. The assets were impaired to nil due to the deterioration
in their condition. Management are of the view that these assets are not in a usable condition.
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R

4. Investment property
Reconciliation of investment property - 2017

Investment property

Opening
Additions
balance
21 117 000 1 549 557

Total

Opening
Fair value
balance
adjustments
25 998 000 (4 881 000)

Total

22 666 557

Reconciliation of investment property - 2016

Investment property

21 117 000

The entitiy does not own land on which the Airport is situated , the land belongs to and is registered in the name of the National
Department of Public Works. The entitiy has the right to use the land on which the Airport is situated for as long as the entity
renders aeronautical services . The entity is responsible for all the infrastructure developments and improvements made on the
land. The investment property relates to properties located within Polokwane International Airport.
The valuation was based on open market value for existing use.
Details of valuation
The effective date of the revaluations was 31 March 2016. Revaluations were performed by an independent valuer, Mr JN
Booysen (Professional Associated Valuer) , of Lutendo Property Group (Pty) Ltd.The valuers are not connected to the company
and have recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.
The valuation is based on information received and market related rates were utilised for the purpose of this valuation report.
The investment property is valued after three years unless there's a need to.
5. Intangible assets

Cost

2017
Accumulated Carrying value Cost

677 355

(467 902)

amortisation
Computer software, other

2016
Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation

209 453

636 341

Opening
balance
298 629

Additions

(337 712)

298 629

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Computer software, other

41 013

Amortisation
(130 189)

Total
209

453

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016

Computer software, other
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Opening
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425 898

Amortisation
(127 269)
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2017
R

2016
R

189 805
14 349
15 207
47 545
(80 000)

206 163
17 745
18 211
(10 314)
(42 000)

186 906

189 805

(186 906)

(189 805)

6. Long service award liability
Movement in the employee long term service award liability
Opening liability
Current service cost
Interest
Actuarial losses / (gains) recognised in statement of financial performance
Benefits paid

Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded

The actuarial (gains)/losses for the year ending 31 march 2017 are R47 545 lower than the reported in the valuation report as
at 31 March 2016, as prepared by ARCH Consulting.
Breakdown of the actuarial gains and losses
(Gains)losses due to change in assumptions
(Gains)/losses due to demographics

47 545
-

(10 314)

The discount rate has remained constant at 8.32%, thus there is no change in the liability due to a change in financial
assumptions.
A decrease in the liability of approximately R47 545. is due to change in the basis. In particular, there were more benefit
payments made in the year ending 31 March 2016 than expected in the valuation as at 31 March 2015.

Expense recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains) losses
Benefit paid

14 349
15 207
47 545
(80 000)

14 349
15 207
-

(2 899)

29 556

8,32 %
100,00 %

8,87 %
100,00 %

Principal actuarial assumptions of valuation model used
Discount rate as at 31 March (%)
Take up rate by employees
The normal retirement age for employees is age 65.
Post-retirement mortality is not applicable as all employees included in the valuation are in active employment, and will be
removed from the valuation once they retire.
The marital status of the employees is not relevant for this valuation and therefore was not considered.
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R

2016
R

655 631
459 833
(12 092)

2 130 619
655 631
(2 130 619)

7. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Current year's fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Less: fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off (As per resolution dated 23
March 2017)

1 103 372

655 631

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure comprises of:
SARS (Late Penalties and Interest)
Telkom(Late Interest)
Basadzi Personnel (Re-advertisement)
RNC Bapela (Error in payment made)
Media24 (Re-advertisement)
Various

Steps taken to recover the losses and measures put in place to prevent a re-occurrence in future
SARS - Monthly VAT returns are currently submitted before the deadline to avoid further late penalties and interest.
Telkom - The entity has since establisehd a direct contact at Telkom, to avoid challenges in payments.
Basadzi communications - Specifications will be drafted properly to avoid readvertisement.

8. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular expenditure current year
Add: Previously ommitted
Less: Irregular expenditure written off (As per resolution dated 23 March 2017)

Irregular expenditure per age classification
Irregular expenditure current year
Irregular expenditure from prior years

20 385 522
5 030 057
(15 014 651)

8 240 608
676 487
11 468 427
-

10 400 928

20 385 522

5 030 057
5 370 871

676 487
19 709 035

10 400 928

20 385 522

The entity has discover additional irregular expenditure of R11 468 427 from the prior year which was adjusted. The remaining
irregular expenditure is still under investigation.

9. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables
Prepaid expenses

16 881 308
(13 322 478)
118 545

13 202 526
(9 676 173)
887 613

3 677 375
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value due to their short term maturity.
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R

2016
R

10. Standards not yet effective
These standard has not yet been effective
IFRS 1 First time
IFRS 2 Share based payment
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts
IFRS 15 Revenue
IFRS 5 Non current assets held for sale
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
IFRS 16 Leases

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Bank balances at call

2 000
2 258 188
318 751

18
12 257 663
336 755

2 578 939

12 594 436

12. Share capital

Authorised
1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each

1 000

1 000

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at 01 April 2016

12

12

Issued
12 Ordinary shares at R1 each

12

12

No changes in authorised share capital during the year.

The Limpopo Department of Transport has full rights on distribution and capital re-payments of shares.
13. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Amounts received in advance
VAT
Deposits held
Accrued expense
Deposits received
Salary control account
Retention fees

10 545 421
212 741
115 855
64 672
1 669 105
1 654
357 717
212 152

3 247 206
140 666
1 561 589
8 000
322 061
-

13 179 317

5 279 522

2017
R

2016
R

14. Deferred grant income
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2016
R

38 458 717
59 838 000
(59 838 000)
(2 263 187)
(2 263 187)

40 721 904
39 737 210
(39 737 210)
(2 263 187)
(2 263 187)

14. Deferred grant income (continued)
Amortisation
Opening balance
Grant received
Grant utilised for operating expenditure
Grant utlised against depreciation
Less short term portion

33 932 343
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

33 932 343
2 263 187
36 195 530

36 195 530
36 195 530
2 263 187
38 458 717

The entity receives government grants from the Department of Transport to be utilised for infrastructure development as well as
for operational purposes.
15. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2017

Provisions for employee benefits

Opening
balance

Additions

887 622

1 776 216

Utilised
during the
year
(1 408 307)

Total

Additions

Total

75 443

887

622

786 931
468 600

532
354

985
637

1 255 531

887

622

1 255

531

Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for leave
Provision for bonus
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2016
R

Aeronautical revenue
Non-aeronautical revenue

10 436 943
4 978 052

12 334 059
4 741 585

Aeronautical Revenue
Landing Fees
Passenger Fees
Parking Fees - Aircraft
Buggage Handling
ATC - Air Traffic control fees (Approaching fees)
Aircraft cleaning services
Parking Fees - Aircraft
Passenger Fees

15 414 995
1 787 978
2 793 721
60 880
11 454
5 734 501
1 700
1 404
45 305

17 075 644
2 316 651
3 011 848
327 163
231 113
6 447 284
-

Non - Aeronautical Revenue
Rental - Terminal
Rental - Offices
Rental - Hangers
Rental - Shops
Conference hall
Water and electricity
Tender documents
Other Income
Sale of permits
Fuel
Rental facility
Parking fees- Car
Advertising Income

10 436 943
354 414
353 713
317 481
34 921
197 018
257 550
143 486
104 981
64 597
35 629
1 778 085
967 863
368 315

12 334 059
335 769
386 626
123 912
12 611
41 225
207 614
32 211
1 134 960
41 242
23 325
1 378 555
965 056
58 480

4 978 053

4 741 586

2 263 187
52 489 358

2 263 187
39 737 211

54 752 545

42 000 398

28 049 423
122 633
237 833
3 595
309 420
864 204

21 672 896
102 207
186 320
1 276
109 321
649 765

29 587 108

22 721 785

450 443

370 795

16. Revenue from exchange transaction

17. Revenue from non exchange transaction
Deferral on government grants
Government grants

18. Employee cost
Employee costs
Basic
UIF
SDL
Other payroll levies
Leave pay provision charge
Long-term benefits - incentive scheme

19. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank
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R
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R

20. Fair value adjustments
Investment property (Fair value model)

-

(4 881 000)

15 207

18 211

1 771 575

2 395 984

(12 282 848)

(12 437 121)

10 149 366
(450 443)
15 207
(50 444)
367 909

10 095 878
(370 795)
18 211
4 881 000
1 367 925
(6 044)
1 456 156

736 909
7 899 795
(2 263 187)

3 139 396
1 497 470
(2 263 452)

21. Finance costs
Bank
22. Auditor's remuneration
Fees
23. Other comprehensive income
24. Cash generated from operations
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest received
Finance costs
Fair value adjustments
Impairment loss
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deferred grant income

4 122 264
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2017
R

2016
R

17 606 252
10 645 258

3 252 673
14 943 899

25. Commitments and Contigencies
Operating expenditure
Short term approved and contracted for
Long term approved and contracted for

28 251 510

18 196 572

Commitments comprises of the following categories of expenditure:
Capital Commitment of R 10 645 258 and Current Expenditure of R17 606 252
Operating expenditure commitments will be funded from existing funds and government grants received.
Operating lease commitment
Operating lease
Short term approved and contracted for

2-5 years
-

Within a year
32 900

Operating lease commitments will be funded from existing funds and government grants received.
Contingencies
Contingent Asset
Millionaire Lounge
991 737

Linger Lounger
68 452
68 452


Inter Air
1 052 401
As at 31 March 2017, the entity instituted legal proceedings against Linger Lounger and Millionaire Lounge , one of the
tenants occupying the entity"s premises for non-payment of rentals. Both court cases were in progress and the entity is likely to
receive R68 452. The Millionaire Lounge case was resolved after year end and the court rule that everyone will cover his/her
expense and no further expenses incurred by GAAL. However subsequent to year end the court case of Millionair was finalized
after the reporting period
As at 31 March 2017, the entity instituted legal proceedings against Inter Air. A settlement of R1 million was received by the
entitiy and R52 401 was wxchange for an Airplane that is recorded under work in progress.
Contingent Liability
Employee alleges unfair dismissal.
Ex-employee issued summons alleging that GAAL never paid his tax over to
SARS.
Employee suing GAAL and alleges unfair dismissal.
Employees alleges unfair dismissal
The employee approached the Labour Court.
Cession agreement
Unfairly dismal for a Board Member
Alleged cable theft at the airport.
Employee misconduct, CCMA Case.
Dispute over none payment of contract.

161 550

1 230 974
162 035

887 240
406 267
279 157
157 693
11 686 605
-

887 240
406 267
279 157
80 000
100 000
1 089 950

13 578 512

4 235 623

As at 31 March 2017 the entity is in litigation in the labour court. The entity is defending these matters. The total cost estimated
by the Attorneys amounts to R12 427 106. The dispute over none payment of contract was settled during the financial year and
the order was in favour of the entity. The labor case's for alleged cable theft at the Airport and employee misconduct were settled
with written warning. The dispute relating to the billboard was also settled in favour of GAAL. Subsequently the entity received a
court summons from a former Board member for unfairly dismal on the 18 May 2017 which is adjusting event. Subsequently the
case for unfair dismissal was settled after year.
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2017
R

2016
R

26. Related parties
Relationships
Parent Department
Departments with significant influence
Dept of Home Affairs
Dept of Health
South African Police Services
South African Revenue Services
Provincial Treasury
National Dept of Public Works
Limpopo Dept of Transport
Board Members
The Board was appointed on the 1st August 2015

Members of key management

The Board was appointed 1 September 2016 and resigned by the 07
November 2017
Interim Board of Directors

Limpopo Department of Transport
Limpopo Provincial Government and National
Government
Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal
Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal
Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal
Office Space for rental at the Airport Terminal R245 546,83
Audit committee amounting to R80 773,40
Right of use of land by GAAL
Secondment of staff to assist in financial
management at GAAL
GT Sengoara (Chairperson)
BT Nkambule (Deputy Chairperson)
LJ Matshekga (ARC Chairperson)
ME Rasefate (OPS Chairperson)
S. Mahada (Non - Executive Director)
Mogashoa KC (Chairperson) - Resigned (31 October
2015)
TTS Zulu (Chief Executive Officer) - Contract expired
26 January 2017
TM Mathabatha (Chief Financial Officer)
NW Mathonsi (Senior Operations Manager)
MD Malesa (Human Resources Manager) - Resigned
31 August 2015
M Matli (Senior Human Resources Manager)
E Mphahlele
T Sethaelo
ME Rasefate
MS Mahada
TA Matsila
N Mangena
NF Mphahlele

The entity is listed as a schedule 3D government business enterprise in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of
1999 as amended) and therefore falls within the national sphere of government. It is 100% controlled by its parent department
which is the Limpopo Department of Transport. The related parties of GAAL consist mainly of government departments, as well
as key management personnel of GAAL and close family members of related parties. GAAL receives grants from the Department
of Transport for infrastructure development and operational costs.
Interim Board members are employees of the Limpopo Department of Transport and therefore they do not receive any fees for
attendance of meetings.
G Sengoara chairperson of the board was redeployed to the position of the Acting CEO as from 1 May 2016 until 07 November
2016.
Government grant
Department of Transport

59 838 000

45 300 000

Director's remuneration
Non Executive Directors
Executive Management

303 939
4 982 944

357 876
2 766 137

5 286 883
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2017
R
26. Related parties (continued)
2017 Non-executive directors
Sengoara GT (Chairperson) Deployed ACEO
Nkambule BT (Deputy Chairperson) - Contract ended 31 July
2016
Matshekga LJ (ARC Chairperson)
Rasefate ME (OPS Chairperson) - Resigned (03 November
2016)
Mphahlele E - Terminated (26 January 2017)
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2016
R

Directors
Remuneration
63 603
67 442

Subsistence &
Total
travel
9 632
73 235
4 921
72 363

50 937
91 480

3 767
6 049

54 704
97 529

6 108

-

6 108

279 570

24 369

303 939

Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
2017
R
26. Related parties (continued)
2016 Non-executive directors

Sitting
41 608
28 024
24 224
31 512
4 072

Directors
Remuneration
61 569
52 255
48 626
48 626
-

Subsistence &
Total
travel
2 902
106 079
1 375
81 654
11 355
84 205
1 727
81 865
4 072

129 440

211 076

17 359

839 008

Other
payments
343 134

Subsistance
and travel
133 660

Termination
Payment
54 720

1 370 522

708 037
851 840

892
182 830

2 508

-

708 929
1 037 178

795 514

222 534

2 425

-

1 020 473

629 401

201 465

14 976

-

845 842

3 823 800

950 855

Sengoara GT (Chairperson)
Nkambule BT (Deputy Chairperson)
Matshekga LJ (ARC Chairperson)
Rasefate ME (OPS Chairperson)
Mogashoa KC (Chairperson) - Resigned (31
October 2015)

2017 Executive
Management
TTS Zulu (Chief Executive
Officer)
Sengoara GT
TM Mathabatha (Chief
Financial Officer)
NW Mathonisi (Senior
Operations Manager)
Matli MD

2016
Executive management
TTS Zulu
TM Mathabatha (Chief
Financial Officer)
NW Mathonsi (Snr
Operations)
MD Malesa (SNR Human
Resource) Resigned (31 July
2015)
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2016
R

Salaries

Salaries

153 569

357 875
Total

54 720

4 982 944

949 936
618 982

Other
payments
134 563
-

Subsistence
and travel
155 771
8 260

552 358

26 762

2 425

-

581 545

295 037

-

22 043

-

317 080

2 416 313

161 325

-

2 766 137

188 499

Termination
Payment
-

Total
1 240 270
627 242

Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL)
(Registration number 1995/002792/06)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
2017
R

2016
R

27. Change in estimate
Property, plant and equipment
The change in accounting estimate is as a results of the review of useful lives, since the exercise was being performed for the
first time as a result of incorrect application of the accounting standard (IAS 16) that resulted to an error and below we have
indicated the categories of assets with their useful lives and their reviewed useful lives. The impact of this change was
accounted for as an error and disclosed under the prior period error. It should be noted that the assets were assessed
individually and impact didn't affect all of them -

Asset category
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer Equipment
Building
Runaway lights and air traffic
Electrical equipment
Baggage handling equipment

Original
useful lives
10
6
4
6
3
20
10
15
5
79

Assessed
useful lives
2
2
2
2
4
2

Impact
12
8
4
8
5
20
10
19
7

14

93

28. Prior period errors
Property, plant and equipment
In the prior year the entity did not fully review useful lives of assets at the end of tne financial year as prescribed by IAS 16.
As a the entity did not comply with the requirements of this paragraph, residual values and the useful lives were reviewed as at
31 March 2017 which resulted in the restatements.
Furthermore, the prior period error was also a result of assets identified on the floor which were previously not included in the
asset register and also the assessment of useful lives.

Revenue and receivables
The prior period error in the revenue was due to the approach fees not accounted for in accordance with IAS 18 for
transactions between an agent and principal. As a result of this, an adjustment was made to revenue, value added tax and
trade receivables.
This transaction also had an effect on the provision for doubtful debt due to the increase in trade receivables.
Expenditure and payables
During the prior year, dupplicates transaction were identifies in expenditure and these duplications affected municipal
expenditure, consulting fees, repairs and maintenance, employee costs and other expense accounts.The depreciation was
calculated incorrectly which required an adjustment on depreciation.
Cash and cash equivalents
The cash and bank was reconciled and the decrease was caused by the misallocation of transactions in the prior year.
Intangible assets
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2017
R

2016
R

A decrease in an intangible assets was caused by software that is renewed on a yearly basis which was incorrectly capitalized
in the prior year.

.

Prior period error

Statement of Financial Position

Restated

Cash and cash bank
Trade and other payables
Trade and Other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Accumulated surplus

12 594 436
(5 279 523)
4 213 490
96 969 886
298 629
(90 578 239)

12 944 031
(5 943 255)
3 310 867
94 404 154
423 093
(86 719 735)

(349 595)
663 732
902 623
2 565 732
(124 464)
(3 858 505)

18 218 679

18 419 155

(200 477)

Restated
17 075 644
42 000 397
370 795
(66 984 747)

Audited
12 208 404
42 000 398
370 391
(59 953 307)

Total
4 867 240
(1)
404
(7 031 440)

(7 537 911)

(5 374 114)

(2 163 797)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue
Other Income
Investment Income
Operating expenses

29. Comparative fIgures
Certain comparative figures have been restated
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Audited

Adjustment
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Detailed Income Statement
2017

2016
Restated *
R

Note(s)

R

Revenue
Aeronautical revenue
Non-aeronautical revenue

10 436 943
4 978 052

12 334 059
4 741 585

16

15 414 995

17 075 644

19

2 263 187
450 443
52 489 358

2 263 187
370 795
39 737 211

55 202 988

42 371 193

(82 885 624)

(66 984 747)

(12 267 641)
(15 207)
-

(7 537 910)
(18 211)
(4 881 000)

(15 207)

(4 899 211)

Other income
Deferral on government grants
Interest received
Government grants

Expenses (Refer to page 41)
Operating loss
Finance costs
Fair value adjustments
Loss for the year

21
20

(12 282 848)

(12 437 121)

* See Note 2 & 28

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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Detailed Income Statement
2017
Note(s)
Operating expenses
Accomodation
expenses
Administration
expense
Advertising and promotional items
Air traffic control
Auditors remuneration 22 Bad debt impairment provision
Bank
charges
Cleaning services
Commission paid

Consulting and professional fees
Director's emoluments
Delivery expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Employee costs
Entertainment Fines
and penalties IT
expenses Insurance
Legal expenses
Licence

Medical checkups
Worksman compensation levy
Municipal expenses
Pest
control
Petrol and oil
Placement fees
Postage
Printing and stationery
Protective
clothing
Repairs and maintenance
Security
contract
Subscription fees
Sundry expense
Telephone and fax
Training
Travel

R

(52 512)
(7 148)
(421 091)
(4 540 333)
(1 771 575)
(3 646 305)
(80 755)
(1 360 172)
(60 604)
(5 284 404)
(624 985)
(2 190)
(10 149 366)
(29 587 108)
(52 418)
(214 415)
(1 043 277)
(837 644)
(3 409 197)
(9 132)
(27 605)
(99 494)
(2 717 802)
(1 674)
(317 523)
(700 120)
(2 797)
(368 685)
(72 285)
(10 475 332)
(3 135 544)
(3 000)
(66 521)
(1 190 335)
(240 892)
(311 384)
(82 885 624)

* See Note 2 & 28
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2016
Restated *
R

(26 632)
(354 081)
(4 513 655)
(2 395 984)
(7 690 705)
(74 561)
(906 267)
(27 366)
(2 049 975)
(678 894)
(2 751)
(11 463 803)
(22 721 785)
(24 334)
(591 404)
(508 193)
(1 014 602)
(1 883 916)
(72 216)
(95 065)
(1 008 804)
(411 952)
(57 853)
(193)
(248 952)
(17 818)
(3 766 250)
(2 908 292)
(96 823)
(941 082)
(232 622)
(197 917)
(66 984 747)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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